
1 
 

     KALAMAZOO CHARTER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 1 
 2 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING HELD MARCH 3, 2016 3 
 4 

A regular meeting of the Kalamazoo Charter Township Planning Commission was held on 5 
March 3, 2016, at the Kalamazoo Township Hall commencing at 7:00 p.m. 6 
 7 
Members Present: Robert J. VanderKlok 8 
   William Chapman 9 
   Steven C. Leuty 10 
   Charles H. Rothrock 11 
   Robert E. Talbot 12 
     13 
Members Absent: Henry Dingemans 14 

Sarah Milne 15 
 16 
Also present were Andy Moore, Township Planner and Zoning Administrator, Catherine 17 
Kaufman, Township Attorney and 6 interested persons.   18 
 19 
ITEM 1     CALL TO ORDER 20 
 21 
 Chairman VanderKlok called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  22 
 23 
ITEM 2  ROLL CALL 24 
 25 

Chairman VanderKlok called the roll and advised that Commissioners Dingemans 26 
and Milne were absent.   Motion was made by Mr. Rothrock, seconded by Mr. Chapman to 27 
excuse Commissioners Milne and Dingemans.   The motion passed unanimously. 28 
  29 
ITEM 3   APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 4 and 30 
FEBRUARY 24, 2016 31 
 32 

Chairman VanderKlok said the next item was approval of minutes from the Planning 33 
Commission’s regular meeting on February 4, 2016 and special meeting on February 24, 34 
2016. He noted that the February 4 meeting minutes had already been approved at the 35 
special meeting on February 24.  He also said that the special meeting minutes of February 36 
24 were not ready for review yet and would be reviewed at the next meeting.  37 

 38 
ITEM 4   APPROVAL OF AGENDA FOR MARCH 3, 2016 MEETING 39 
 40 
 Motion was made by Mr. Rothrock, seconded by Mr. Chapman to approve the 41 
agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 42 
 43 
ITEM 5   SCHEDULED REVIEWS 44 
 45 
 None 46 
   47 



2 
 

ITEM 6   PUBLIC HEARINGS 1 
 2 
6.a Public hearing regarding proposed rezoning:  3125 W. Main Street, rezoning from 3 
RB-2 to B-3.  Tax parcel 3906-17-305-080. 4 
 5 
 Chairman VanderKlok noted that the public hearing on this request was held at the 6 
Planning Commission’s February 4, 2016 meeting.  The public hearing has been closed.    7 
The matter was tabled at the February 4, 2016 meeting at the applicant’s request.   The 8 
Chairman said at this meeting, the process would be:  applicant would be allowed to speak 9 
and the Planning Commission would then deliberate.  If appropriate, the Planning 10 
Commission could ask questions of the applicant.   Any interested public could provide 11 
comments during the public comment period.  12 
 13 
 Ed Talanda spoke on behalf of his father, the applicant.  Mr. Talanda said that his 14 
family understood that the Township was part way through the review and approval of a 15 
new Zoning Ordinance.   Chairman VanderKlok explained to the applicant and the public 16 
this Planning Commission’s status on the new zoning ordinance, noting that the next 17 
special Planning Commission meeting would focus on review of the zoning map.  Chairman 18 
VanderKlok noted that the zoning ordinance revision may expand the permitted uses on the 19 
Talanda property, but until the draft zoning map is reviewed, the Planning Commission had 20 
no indication of what the recommended zoning for the subject property would be.  21 
 22 
 Mr. Talanda asked if his family could table their application or wait to review the 23 
proposed zoning map and permitted land uses.   Attorney Kaufman said that the Planning 24 
Commission was scheduling an open house on the proposed zoning ordinance for April 13.  25 
Thereafter, the Planning Commission would hold a public hearing on the draft zoning 26 
ordinance and map, as required by law.   The final approval of the zoning ordinance would 27 
be reserved to the Township Board. 28 
 29 
 Chairman VanderKlok said that the Talanda’s rezoning application had been 30 
submitted under the existing zoning ordinance, ie., it was a rezoning request from RB2 to B-31 
3.   If the new zoning ordinance and map are adopted, the subject property will be zoned 32 
something else, as neither of those 2 zoning districts were proposed in the new zoning 33 
ordinance.    34 
 35 
 Annette Brennan, daughter of the applicant, said that her family believes it is in the 36 
best interest of the Township, the property owner and the neighbors to rezone this property, 37 
to allow more intensive uses.   She noted that the property cannot be used for a medical 38 
building at this time, given the structure’s obsolescence and failure to comply with the ADA. 39 
 She said that if the zoning of the property isn’t elevated in some fashion to allow more uses 40 
on the property, the Township is facing the reality of an abandoned building or the rental of 41 
the building to an undesirable use.   She asked if their pending rezoning application could 42 
remain on the table while the Zoning Ordinance update process proceeded to completion. 43 
 44 
 Attorney Kaufman explained the options in this regard:   the Planning Commission 45 
allow this request to remain tabled indefinitely, the Planning Commission determine that it 46 
would not allow indefinite tabling of the request, or the applicant voluntarily withdraw their 47 



3 
 

rezoning request.   In response to a question from Ms. Brennan, Attorney Kaufman said she 1 
could not say with any certainty how much (if any) the applicant would be refunded if they 2 
withdrew their application.   Attorney Kaufman noted that the public hearing had already 3 
been held in this matter (thereby necessitating publication and mailing costs).    4 
 5 
 The Planning Commission had discussion on the options.  Chairman VanderKlok 6 
said he was not in favor of allowing an indefinite tabling of this request.  While he could not 7 
tell the applicant how to proceed, he preferred the applicant withdraw their request.  8 
Trustee Leuty noted that the applicant had several other permitted uses available in the RB-9 
2 zoning district, including high quality multiple family, funeral parlor, bank, etc.   He noted 10 
these uses might mesh better with the existing residential uses.  He asked the applicant if 11 
they had explored any of the other permitted or special land uses in the RB-2 district. 12 
 13 
 Annette Brennan responded that building would be very costly to retrofit to comply 14 
with ADA requirements.  They will review the options, but at this point do not know of any 15 
economically viable options.  16 
 17 
 Mr. Rothrock asked Mr. Moore to comment on the standards for rezoning.  Mr. 18 
Moore said that when considering rezoning to B-3, the Planning Commission had to be 19 
aware that all B-3 uses would be permitted on the subject property.   There was Planning 20 
Commission discussion on the narrow access from the private Cherry Hill Street to the 21 
residences located south of the applicant’s office building.  The Planning Commission was 22 
concerned that there was not adequate access for emergency vehicles to the residential 23 
units.   Dr. Talanda said that his property is on West Main Street and he is not accessed off 24 
Cherry Hill.  Chairman VanderKlok said that from his site visit, it appeared that you had to 25 
turn off West Main, onto the private Cherry Hill Street to reach the office building.  Dr. 26 
Talanda said that there is a 66 ft. wide right of way which he has maintained for years, but 27 
that Cherry Hill Street does not start until the rear of his property.  He also said that the fact 28 
that the street is then split into a boulevard should not affect review of his property.  29 
 30 
 Ms. Brennan said that, after consultation with her family, they would like to 31 
withdraw their rezoning application at this time.  They would confirm that intent in writing 32 
sent to Mr. Mehmed.  They hoped to be refunded a portion of their application fee.  They 33 
also intended to participate in the upcoming Open House and other meetings on the new 34 
zoning ordinance.  35 
 36 

Motion was made by Mr. Rothrock, seconded by Mr. Chapman to accept the 37 
applicant’s request to withdraw their rezoning application. The motion passed 38 
unanimously. 39 
 40 
 Chairman VanderKlok advised the applicant to contact Mr. Mehmed to assist with 41 
processing any refund and to provide more information on the zoning ordinance update 42 
status. 43 
 44 
 Dr. Talanda thanked the Planning Commission and said that they will be willing to 45 
wait for the zoning ordinance update process to play out. 46 
 47 



4 
 

 1 
 2 
ITEM 7 OLD BUSINESS 3 

 4 
None 5 

  6 
ITEM 8   NEW BUSINESS 7 

 8 
 None 9 
 10 

ITEM 9   OPEN DISCUSSION 11 
 12 
9.a. Correspondence Received.    13 
 14 
Chairman VanderKlok shared information on an MTA class on ZBAs scheduled in 15 

March.   Attorney Kaufman said she is the instructor of these classes.   16 
 17 
9.b. Planning Commission Members. 18 
 19 
None 20 

 21 
9.c. Members of the Audience 22 
 23 
Shireen Miller, 3815 N. Westnedge, asked the Planning Commission for help in 24 

enforcing Zoning Ordinance regulations against the neighboring business, Quality Precast.  25 
She said she saw on the Kalamazoo Township RoundTable on PMN about the Zoning 26 
Ordinance Update and she is asking the Planning Commission to make sure that the 27 
permitted uses of the Quality Precast property are not expanded under the proposed new 28 
zoning ordinance and map.   She said that she brought her concerns about the noise, fumes, 29 
vibrations and other violations to the Township Board in October, but has not heard much 30 
since. 31 

 32 
Chairman VanderKlok said that he understood this to be a matter for the Board.  33 
 34 
Ms. Miller clarified that she is asking that the Planning Commission make sure, in 35 

the zoning ordinance update, that the uses allowed on the Quality Precast property are not 36 
expanded to allow more intensive uses.  She noted the proximity of residential development 37 
and the need to protect residents from the impacts of industrial activity.  38 

 39 
Mr. Leuty said that he understood this was a two part issue:  enforcement and the 40 

impact of the new future zoning/zoning ordinance.   41 
 42 
Kathleen Doornbos, 314 Solon, said that through her service on the Township Board, 43 

she was aware that Quality Precast had expanded its operations up to the property line 44 
abutting residential property.   She felt that the Township had allowed this to happen 45 
although it violated Zoning Ordinance regulations and that the Township needed to address 46 
this issue.  47 



5 
 

 1 
Ms. Miller asked Chairman VanderKlok why the Planning Commission had no 2 

knowledge of the enforcement issues at Quality Precast.  Chairman VanderKlok explained 3 
the Planning Commission authorities and responsibilities, noting that zoning enforcement 4 
was not one of them.  5 

 6 
Trustee Leuty said that the Township Board is aware of the enforcement issue and is 7 

working on it with Attorney Seeber.   Ms. Miller said that it appears some changes have 8 
been made, but she would like to be kept apprised of the enforcement status and outcome.  9 
She would also like to be apprised on the status of the Zoning Ordinance rewrites.   10 

 11 
Jonathan Start, 318 Cherry Hill, asked if the draft zoning ordinance is available for 12 

review.  He also asked for the format of the Open House. 13 
 14 
Chairman VanderKlok said the text is primarily done, except for the sign regulations. 15 

 The next thing would be to review the proposed zoning map. 16 
 17 

ITEM 10   REPORT OF TOWNSHP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE 18 
 19 
Mr. Leuty thanked the residents for bringing the Quality Precast issue to the 20 

Planning Commission’s attention.  He clarified that he had not intended to indicate in any 21 
way that Ms. Doornbos, during her service on the Township Board,  was involved with or in 22 
any way responsible for the expansion at Quality Precast.    23 

 24 
Mr. Leuty also said that the chicken ordinance had been passed by the Township 25 

Board.  He advised that the Township had won an award from the Kalamazoo Bicycle Club 26 
for requiring sidewalks in subdivision and condominium developments.   Last, he noted 27 
that he is continuing to follow up with the County Brownfield staff re developments in 28 
Kalamazoo Township.  He said that there is ongoing work in the Township and that 29 
information on these projects needs to be better communicated to the Township. 30 

 31 
ITEM 11   REPORT OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRSENTATIVE  32 

 33 
Chairman VanderKlok reported the ZBA did not meet in February.  34 
 35 

ITEM 12   COMMENTS FROM PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 36 
 37 

Mr. Chapman asked about security measures in the Township Hall and parking lot 38 
during Planning Commission meetings.   Mr. Leuty said there are no cameras in the parking 39 
lot.  However, the presence of the Township Police Department in the same building does 40 
have a deterrent effect.   There was discussion regarding security for commissioners during 41 
meetings.  42 

 43 
Mr. Rothrock commented again on the Township’s master plan and the need to make 44 

it substantive and useful.   He also said it is important that whomever the Township hired as 45 
zoning administrator have some knowledge about the Township, so that they could hit the 46 
ground running. He next commented on the need to keep updated on the County’s 47 



6 
 

brownfield work and the issue of lead in the water pipes in Eastwood.  1 
 2 
 3 

ITEM 13   REPORT OF PLANNER AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 4 
 5 
None. 6 
 7 

ITEM 14   REPORT OF TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY 8 
 9 
None. 10 
 11 

ITEM 15   ADJOURNMENT 12 
 13 
     There being no further business, Mr. Rothrock made a motion to adjourn, seconded by 14 
Mr. Chapman.  The motion carried unanimously and the meeting was adjourned at 8:15 15 
p.m. 16 

 17 
 18 

Synopsis of Actions 19 
Township Planning Commission Meeting  20 

March 3, 2016 21 
 22 

At its meeting of March 3, 2016, the Kalamazoo Charter Township Planning 23 
Commission took the following actions: 24 
 25 
1. Accepted the applicant’s request to withdraw a rezoning request for 3125 W. Main 26 
Street. 27 
2. Discussed the upcoming special meeting on 3/30/16 re zoning ordinance update. 28 
 29 
Date minutes prepared:  March 6 2016 30 
 31 
Date minutes approved:  March        , 2016 32 
 33 
 34 
KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP  35 
PLANNING COMMISSION  36 
  37 
                                                                       38 
Robert Talbot, Secretary 39 
1720 Riverview Drive 40 
Kalamazoo, MI  49004 41 
(269) 381-8080 42 


